BY-LAWS OF WEST DISTRICT HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION (the "Association")

FILED 101
SEP 1 2 2019
Registrar of Corporations

Province of Alberta

RECITALS:

- A. Truman Park Ltd., Truman Development Corporation and Gateway Condos (Calgary) Inc. (collectively, the "Developer") are or will be entitled to become the owner of those certain lands in the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, commonly referred to as West District, as constituted now, in the future and from time to time (the "Community") including at a minimum, those listed in Schedule "A" attached hereto (the "Lands");
- B. The Developer intends to develop the Community by constructing thereon, or causing to be constructed thereon, residential dwellings of co-ordinated design and appearance for the benefit of all residents in the Subdivision; and
- C. The Developer has incorporated (or has made application for incorporation of) the Association under and pursuant to the *Societies Act* R.S.A. 2000 c. S-14, for the objects stated in the application to form a society.

NOW THEREFORE be it and it is hereby enacted as By-law No. 1 of the Association, the following:

ARTICLE 1 INTERPRETATION

- 1.1 Subject to Articles 1.2 and 1.3, and unless the context where used or employed shall reasonably otherwise require, in this by-law the following terms and phrases shall have the definition and meaning as hereinafter ascribed:
 - (a) "Act" means the Societies Act R.S.A. 2000 c. S-14;
 - (b) "Agreement" means the turn-over agreement to be made between the Developer and the Association pursuant to which the Association will assume certain responsibilities for the ownership, maintenance and appearance of the Facilities;
 - (c) "Annual General Meeting" means an annual general meeting of the Association as required by section 25 of the Act;
 - (d) "Assessments" means the costs and expenses of the Association incurred in carrying out its objects, powers and duties;
 - (e) "Association" means West District Home Owners Association incorporated as a society under and pursuant to the Act;
 - (f) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Association;
 - (g) "By-laws" means this by-law and all other by-laws of the Association now, hereafter and from time to time in force and effect;
 - (h) "Community" means the subdivision located in the City of Calgary commonly known as West District, as defined in the recitals hereto;

- (i) "Co-ordinated Neighborhood" means the design, appearance, colour, finish and look of the Community as developed by the Developer;
- (j) "Director" means a member of the Board of Directors;
- (k) "Eligible Owner" means the then registered owner of land in the Community and any parcel or lot therein at the Turn-Over Date and shall include every person owning land in the Community following the Turn-Over Date, provided that:
 - (i) where there is more than one (1) person registered as owner to a parcel or lot the Eligible Owner shall be one (1) of the persons so named by the registered owners of such parcel or lot;
 - (ii) where a parcel or lot is owned by a corporation, the Eligible Owner shall be a person resident in such parcel or lot and designated by the corporation as the Eligible Owner;
 - (iii) where a parcel or lot is occupied by a tenant, such tenant may be designated as Eligible Owner by and instead of the registered owner of such property; and
 - (iv) in the event of difficulty or dispute in determining an Eligible Owner, the Directors in their absolute discretion may designate the Eligible Owner, the intention being that there be one Eligible Owner for each parcel or lot in the Community and that the Eligible Owner be a natural person resident in the Community;
- (I) "Encumbrance" means the one (1) or more encumbrances registered against title to all lands or any parcel or lot in the Community, in favour of the Association, for the purposes of securing the collection of fees, dues, costs and expenses which from time to time are or may be assessed by the Association against any lands in the Community or to any or all Eligible Owners;
- (m) "Facilities" means those lands and facilities which the Association will own or has agreed to maintain pursuant to the Agreement and includes any other lands or facilities in the Community which the Association determines to be in the interest of its members to own or maintain;
- (n) "Family Member" includes the spouse and children of and residing with a Member;
- (o) "Member" means a member of the Association pursuant to Article 3 hereof;
- (p) "President" means the president of the Association appointed pursuant to Article 6 hereof;
- (q) "Restrictive Covenants" means that Restrictive Covenant or those Restrictive Covenants now or hereafter registered or caused to be registered by the Developer against title to the certain lands in the Community, including, without limitation, those lands containing or comprising the Facilities;
- (r) "Secretary" means the secretary of the Association appointed pursuant to Article 6 hereof;
- (s) "Special Resolution" means:
 - (i) a resolution passed:

- (A) at a general meeting of which not less than 21 days' notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution has been duly given, and
- (B) by the vote of not less than 75% of those Members who, if entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy,
- (ii) a resolution proposed and passed as a special resolution at a general meeting of which less than 21 days' notice has been given, if all the Members entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting so agree, or
- (iii) a resolution consented to in writing by all the Members who would have been entitled at a general meeting to vote on the resolution in person or, where proxies are permitted, by proxy;
- (t) "Subscriber" means any and all of the applicants for incorporation of the Association as a society under and pursuant to the Act;
- (u) "Treasurer" means the treasurer of the Association appointed pursuant to Article 6 hereof;
- (v) "Turn-Over Date" means the date upon which the Developer conveys to the Association certain of the Facilities in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement; and
- (w) "Vice-President" means the vice-president of the Association appointed pursuant to Article 6 hereof.

1.2 In this By-law:

- (a) unless the context shall otherwise require, words importing the singular number or the masculine gender shall include the plural number or the feminine gender, as the case may be, and vice versa, and references to persons shall include firms and corporations; and,
- (b) any reference to any statute, or section thereof, shall be deemed to extend and apply to any amendment or replacement to said statute, or section, as the case may be.
- 1.3 In construing this By-law, reference shall be had to the Act, and any Article or part hereof found to be repugnant or unlawful shall be read as deleted or severed without effect to the remaining Articles, this by-law, or any part thereof which shall remain intact.

ARTICLE 2 POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ASSOCIATION, AND BORROWING

- 2.1 In addition to, and not in substitution of, the rights, privileges and powers of the Association under and pursuant to the Act (which rights, privileges and powers are hereby adopted), the Association may, and is hereby empowered:
 - (a) subject to Article 2.3, to do and carry out all and everything necessary, requisite and prudent to perform and observe all and any of its duties, obligations and objects, including all and everything ancillary or auxiliary thereto, without limitation; and,
 - (b) to charge, receive, collect and institute and carry out all prudent and reasonable action to collect any and all monies due to the Association under and pursuant to the Encumbrance.

- 2.2 In addition to, and not in substitution of, the duties and obligations of the Association under and pursuant to the Act, the Association shall:
 - (a) subject to Article 2.3, have such duties and obligations as shall be adopted and approved by resolution of the Members from time to time, provided that such duties and obligations may be rescinded, varied, reduced or added to on resolution of the Members from time to time;
 - (b) always and in any event be responsible for enforcing against any Member and over the applicable lands, each and every one of the Restrictive Covenants; and,
 - (c) always and in any event be responsible for the general maintenance, upkeep and cleanliness of the Facilities in accordance with the Agreement.
- 2.3 Nothing in any of the Association's rights, privileges, powers, duties or obligations shall be inconsistent with the objects of the Association, nor shall the Association profit from any of its activities, unless such profit shall only be used and employed to further the Association's objects.
- 2.4 No amendment of any of Articles 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4 shall be valid or effective unless enacted by Special Resolution.
- 2.5 For the purposes of carrying out the objects, powers and duties of the Association, the Directors may from time to time:
 - (a) enter or cause the Association to enter into such agreements (including without limitation the Agreement) for the purposes of maintaining the Facilities and the Community as a Coordinated Neighbourhood, including without limitation contracts for contractors to supply gardening, landscaping, snowclearing, building maintenance, grounds maintenance and for the enforcement (judicial or otherwise) of any of the Restrictive Covenants; and
 - (b) borrow money on the credit of the Association; and
 - (c) issue, sell or pledge securities of the Association; and
 - (d) charge, mortgage, hypothecate or pledge all or any of the real or personal property of the Association, including book debts, rights, powers, franchises or undertakings, to secure any securities or any money borrowed, or other debt, or any other obligation or liability of the Association;

provided that debentures shall not be issued without the sanction of a Special Resolution of the Association and the Directors may from time to time authorize any Director, officer or employee of the Association or any other person to make arrangements with reference to the moneys borrowed or to be borrowed as aforesaid and as to the terms and conditions of the loan thereof, and as to the securities to be given therefor, with power to vary or modify such arrangements, terms and conditions and to give such additional securities for any moneys borrowed or remaining due by the Association as the Directors may authorize, and generally to manage, transact and settle the borrowing of money by the Association.

ARTICLE 3 MEMBERSHIP, WITHDRAWAL AND EXPULSION OF MEMBERS

- 3.1 The Members of the Association shall be the Subscribers and all Eligible Owners.
- 3.2 No person shall be a Member of the Association unless:
 - (a) he is over the age of eighteen (18) years, or a corporation; and either,
 - (b) he is an Eligible Owner; or
 - (c) he is a Subscriber.
- 3.3 A Member shall automatically and without further act, notice, conduct or writing, cease to be a Member of the Association when he shall cease to be an Eligible Owner; provided that a Subscriber may and shall continue to be a Member notwithstanding that he is or shall not be an Eligible Owner.
- Any Member, including any Subscriber, may withdraw from the Association at any time by tendering his resignation in writing to the President of the Association, and any Member, including any Subscriber may be expelled from the Association by Special Resolution of the Members passed in a general meeting of the Association called for that purpose. Withdrawal or expulsion from the Association shall not, in any manner whatsoever, terminate, reduce or diminish any Eligible Owner's obligations to the Association arising by, through, under or pursuant to the Encumbrance.
- Any Member who resigns, withdraws or is expelled from the Association shall forthwith and on such event, forfeit all right, claim and interest in, arising from and associated with membership in the Association, the Association, and any property (real and personal) of the Association.
- 3.6 Each Member and Family Member shall have access to and be entitled to the benefits associated with the Association's facilities in common with all other Members and Family Members including passive enjoyment and rights of non-exclusive use of the Facilities subject to suspension of such rights:
 - (a) for breach of any rule or regulation for the conduct of Members; and
 - (b) upon withdrawal by or expulsion of the Member from the Association.

ARTICLE 4 DUES, ASSESSMENTS AND THE ENCUMBRANCE

- 4.1 Save for assessments due and payable under and pursuant to the Encumbrance, there shall be no dues or fees payable by any Member except such, if any, as shall from time to time be fixed by majority vote of the Board, which vote shall become effective only when confirmed by Special Resolution of the Members of the Association.
- 4.2 The President or Secretary of the Association shall in writing notify the Members of the dues or fees, if any, and of the time when such dues or fees are payable, and if such dues or fees remain unpaid for thirty (30) days following such due date, the Association may, among such other remedies for collection available to the Association at law or in equity, include such delinquent dues or fees (along with any other delinquent dues or fees of such Member) in assessments to such Member under the Encumbrance.

- 4.3 All costs and expenses of the Association shall be paid by the Eligible Owners sharing equally therein on a pro rata basis, which liability is evidenced and secured by the Encumbrance, and the Association shall annually, in accordance with its budget, and at such times as determined by the Board, assess each Eligible Owner with his share of such costs and expenses, provided that, in the event of an unusual or unbudgeted cost or expenses the Board may, at its discretion, make one or more special and additional assessment under the Encumbrance.
- 4.4 Assessments pursuant to Article 4.3 shall not be considered dues or fees unless prohibited under the Act, in which event; Article 4.1 shall be read and construed to provide for dues and fees in accordance with Article 4.3.

ARTICLE 5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS

- The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors, constituted, appointed and elected under and pursuant to this By-law.
- 5.2 Notwithstanding anything else herein contained and prior to the Turn-Over Date, the Board shall be comprised of the Subscribers to these By-laws (the "Initial Board"). The Subscribers shall remain as Directors of the Initial Board until the Turn-Over Date, provided that the Developer shall be at liberty from time to time to select and designate other persons to replace those Subscribers, and on its so doing, the replacement person shall take the place of that Subscriber who is so replaced.

Prior to the Turn-Over Date, the Developer may appoint any person, who, at the Turn-Over Date, would be an Eligible Owner, to serve as a non-voting observer, and who shall observe the business and affairs of the Board ("**Observing Owner**"). Any Observing Owner(s) appointed by the Developer shall not be included in the count of Directors on the Board for the purposes of Article 5.4 herein.

Other than as provided for in this Article 5.2, Board membership shall commence and expire in accordance with the provisions of this By-law.

- 5.3 The Board shall have and may exercise all of the powers of the Association and may do all such acts and things as may be exercised or done by the Association, on behalf of the Association, as fully and completely as the Association could in general meeting, subject always to:
 - (a) the provisions of the Act; and,
 - (b) express article, resolution or by-law directing or requiring the authority of the Association at a meeting of its Members.
- 5.4 The Board shall be constituted of no less than 3 and no more than 7 Directors.
- All Members, and, in the case of Members who are corporations or firms, their nominees, shall be qualified to be a Director.
- 5.6 A Director shall cease to be qualified to be a Director when:
 - (a) he dies; or
 - (b) he ceases to be a member; or
 - (c) he is removed from office; or

- (d) he resigns his position as Director on written notice to the Board; and, A Director shall cease to be a Director:
- (e) when, in the event of his death, on the date of death; and,
- (f) when, in all other events, he is replaced by another Member as Director;

Provided that, if at any time and from time to time there are either no Directors or no qualified Directors on the Board, any Member may, pursuant to these Bylaws, call a general meeting of the Association for the purposes of electing Members to the Board, and, if no election occurs at such general meeting, such Member may appoint a Director (with consent of such Director) from the Members of the Association to act as a Director of the Association.

- 5.7 Subject to the Act, any Director may be removed from office on resolution of the Members, provided that such Director is concurrently replaced, either:
 - (a) on election by the Members; or,
 - (b) at the direction of the Members, by a quorum of Directors.
- 5.8 Meetings of the Board shall be held from time to time and at such place as the Board may determine. Further the Board may meet in whole or in part by telephone or other communications facilities that would permit all persons participating therein to hear each other.
- All powers of the Board may be exercised by resolution, either, passed at a meeting of the Board, or in writing (without meeting) signed by all Directors entitled to vote thereon.
- 5.10 A quorum of the Board, for the purposes of meeting and carrying out the business and affairs of the Board shall be:
 - (a) where there are three (3) Directors, constituting the Board, two (2) Directors; and,
 - (b) where there are four (4) or more Directors constituting the Board, no less than one-half (1/2) of the Directors constituting the Board.
- 5.11 Provided that a quorum has been constituted, and unless otherwise specifically provided to the contrary provided elsewhere herein, all decisions of the Board in meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes cast on the question. In the case of an equality of votes cast, the Chairman of the meeting shall be entitled to a second or casting vote.
- 5.12 The Chairman of the Board shall be the President, and in his absence (in priority) the Vice-President or the Secretary.
- 5.13 The remuneration paid or to be paid to Directors, officers and employees of the Association shall be such amounts as the members by resolution may from time to time determine.
- 5.14 Every Director of the Association shall be deemed to have assumed office on the express understanding and agreement and condition that every Director of the Association and his heirs, executors and administrators and estate and effects respectively shall from time to time and at all times be indemnified and saved harmless out of the funds of the Association from and against all costs, charges and expenses whatsoever which such Director sustains or incurs in or about any action, suit or proceedings which is brought, commenced or prosecuted against him for or in respect of

any act, deed, matter or thing whatsoever made, done or permitted by him or any other Director or Directors in or about the execution of the duties of his or their office, and also from and against all other costs, charges and expenses which he sustains or incurs in or about or in relation to the affairs thereof except such costs, charges or expenses as are occasioned by his own willful neglect or default.

ARTICLE 6 OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

- 6.1 The Board shall from time to time appoint from its Directors a President. The Board may from time to time appoint from its Directors a Vice-President, Secretary or Treasurer. Any Director may hold more than one (1) office concurrently.
- The duties of all officers of the Association shall be such as the terms of their engagement call for or the Board requires of them.
- 6.3 The Board may from time to time engage or employ agents and other persons necessary in the Board's opinion to carry out the objects of the Association, and such agents and employees shall have such authority and shall perform such duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board.
- 6.4 Only Directors shall be qualified to be officers, and upon a Director ceasing to be a Director, his appointment of office shall cease.
- All officers and employees of the Association shall be subject to removal from office or employment by the Board at any time with or without cause and without notice to the person so removed.
- The President shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Members of the Association and of the Board. The President shall also be charged with the general management and supervision of the affairs and operations of the Association. The President and another officer appointed by the Board for such purpose shall sign all resolutions and membership certificates. During the absence or inability of the President, his duties and powers may be exercised by the Vice-President, and if the Vice-President, or such other Director as the Board may from time to time appoint for the purpose exercises any such duty or power, the absence or inability of the President shall be presumed with reference thereto.
- 6.7 The Vice-President shall assume the duties of the President in the absence of the latter.
- The Treasurer, or person performing the usual duties of a treasurer, shall keep fall and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements of the Association in proper books of account and shall deposit all moneys or other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Association in such bank or banks as may from time to time be designated by the Board. He shall disburse the funds of the Association under the direction of the Board, taking proper vouchers therefor and shall render to the Board at the regular meetings thereof or whenever required of him, an account of all his transactions as Treasurer, and of the financial position of the Association. He shall also perform such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Board.
- 6.9 The Secretary shall be ex officio clerk of the Board. He shall attend all meetings and record all facts and minutes of all proceedings in the books kept for that purpose. He shall give all notices required to be given to Members and to Directors. He shall be the custodian of the seal of the Association and of all books, papers, records, correspondence, contracts and other documents belonging to the Association which he shall deliver up only when authorized by a resolution of the Board to do so and to

such person or persons as may be named in the resolution, and he shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Board.

ARTICLE 7 EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS AND SEAL

- 7.1 Deeds, transfers, licenses, contracts and engagements on behalf of the Association shall be signed by the President and one (1) other Director, who shall affix the seal of the Association to such instruments as require the same.
- 7.2 Contracts in the ordinary course of the Association's operations may be entered into on behalf of the Association by the President or by any other Director authorized by the Board.
- 7.3 Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained in the by-laws of the Association, the Board may at any time by resolution direct the manner in which, and the person or persons by whom, any particular instrument, contract or obligations of the Association may or shall be executed.
- 7.4 The Board shall adopt a seal which shall be the common seal of the Association.
- 7.5 The common seal of the Association shall be under the control of Directors, and the responsibility for its custody and use from time to time shall be determined by the Directors.

ARTICLE 8 MEETINGS AND QUORUM

- A general or special meeting of the Association may be called by the Directors for the transaction of such business as may be properly brought before a general or special meeting of the Association, provided that no less than seven (7) days written notice shall be given of the time and place of the Annual General Meeting to all Members.
- 8.2 Whenever, under the provisions of these By-laws of the Association, notice is required to be given, such notice may be given either personally or by depositing same in a post office or a public letter-box, in a post-paid, sealed wrapper addressed to the Director, officer or Member at his or her address as the same appears on the books of the Association. A notice or other document so sent by post shall be held to be sent at the time when the said was deposited in a post office or public letter-box as aforesaid. For the purpose of sending any notice, the address of any Member, Director or officer shall be the last address as recorded on the books of the Association.
- 8.3 No error or omission in giving notice of any Annual General Meeting, general meeting or special meeting or any such adjourned meeting shall invalidate such meeting or make void any proceedings taken thereat and any Member may at any time waive notice of such meeting and may ratify, approve and confirm any or all proceedings taken or had thereat.
- 8.4 Fifty percent of the Members present in person shall constitute a quorum at any general or special meeting of the Association and in the event that a quorum is not present within thirty (30) minutes after the time called for the meeting, the meeting shall stand adjourned to a time and place determined by the Chairman and, a quorum at any such adjourned meeting shall be a majority of those Members in attendance, provided that in no case can any meeting be held unless there are seven (7) Members present in person.
- Any meeting of the Association or the Directors may be adjourned to any time and from time to time and such business may be transacted at any such adjourned meeting from which such adjournment

- took place. No notice shall be required of any such adjournment. Such adjournment may be made notwithstanding that no quorum is present.
- At all general or special meetings of the Association each Member shall have one (1) vote, provided that any person may hold more than one membership and shall be entitled to cast one (1) vote for each membership held. Each member of the Association may vote by proxy instrument, provided that a written proxy is given to the Chairman before the meeting.

ARTICLE 9 BOOKS, RECORDS, RETURNS, INSPECTIONS, AUDIT

- 9.1 The Directors shall see that all necessary books and records of the Association required by the bylaws of the Association or by an applicable statute or law are regularly and properly kept.
- 9.2 The books of account shall be kept at such place in Alberta as the Directors think fit, and shall at all times be open to inspection by the Directors.
- 9.3 The Directors shall from time to time determine whether, and to what extent and at what times and places and under what conditions and regulations, the accounts and books of the Association or any of them shall be open to the inspection of Members not being Directors, and no Member (not being a Director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document of the Association except as conferred by law or authorized by the Directors or by resolution of the Members, whether previous notice thereof has been given or not.
- 9.4 The fiscal year of the Association shall terminate on a day to be fixed by the Board and the financial statements of the Association's affairs for presentation to the Members at the Annual General Meeting shall be made up to that date.
- 9.5 The books, accounts and records of the Association shall be audited at least once each year by a duly qualified accountant or by two (2) members of the Association elected for that purpose at the Annual General Meeting. If an appointment of auditor is not made at an Annual General Meeting, or the Annual General Meeting is not held, the Directors may appoint an auditor of the Association for the current fiscal year. The Directors may fill any casual vacancy in the office of auditor, but while any such vacancy continues, the surviving or continuing auditor or auditors (if any) shall act.
- 9.6 The remuneration of the auditors of the Association shall be fixed by resolution of the Members, or, if the Members so resolve, by the Directors.
- 9.7 The auditor shall make a report to the Members and Directors on the accounts examined by them and on every balance sheet and statement of income and expenditures laid before the Association at any general meeting during their tenure of office. A complete and proper statement of the standing of the books for the previous year shall be submitted by such auditor at the Annual General Meeting of the Association.
- 9.8 Every auditor of the Association shall have a right of access at all times to all records documents, books, accounts and vouchers of the Association and is entitled to require from the Directors and officers of the Association such information and explanation as may be necessary for the performance of the duties of auditors.
- 9.9 The auditors of the Association are entitled to attend any meeting of the Members of the Association at which any accounts that have been examined or reported on by them are to be laid before the

- members for the purpose of making any statement or explanation they desire with respect to such account.
- 9.10 The rights and duties of an auditor of the Association shall extend back to the date up to which the last audit of the Association's books, accounts and vouchers was made, or, where no audit has been made, to the date on which the Association was incorporated.

ARTICLE 10 AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

10.1 This By-law of the Association shall not be altered or amended to except by Special Resolution.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank, signature page follows.]

SCHEDULE "A" THE LANDS

PLAN 1612747
BLOCK 53
LOT 2
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
AREA: 0.601 HECTARES (1.49 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 67 LOT 1 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS AREA: 0.56 HECTARES (1.38 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 67 LOT 2 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS AREA: 0.52 HECTARES (1.28 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 68 LOT 1 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 69 LOT 1 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681
BLOCK 69
LOT 2
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 4740AK BLOCK 41 EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

PLAN

NUMBER

HECTARES

ACRES MORE OR LESS

ROAD WIDENING

SUBDIVISION

5408JK 1910681

1.51

3.73

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 47

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 48

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

PLAN

NUMBER

HECTARES

ACRES MORE OR LESS

ROAD WIDENING SUBDIVISION

5408JK 1910681

1.45

3.58

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 49

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

PLAN

NUMBER

HECTARES

ACRES MORE OR LESS

ROAD WIDENING SUBDIVISION

5408JK

1910681 1.01

2.50

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 50

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 51

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 54

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 55

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

40771583_2|NATDOCS

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 56

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

PLAN

NUMBER

HECTARES

ACRES MORE OR LESS

ROAD WIDENING

SUBDIVISION

5408JK

1910681

0.43

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 57

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

A) THE ROAD WIDENING ON PLAN 5408JK

HECTARES (ACRES) MORE OR LESS

0.30

B) PLAN 1911436

ROAD

0.121

1.06

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 58

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

HECTARES (ACRES) MORE OR LESS

A) PLAN 1911436

ROAD

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

0.013

0.03

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 60

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

HECTARES (ACRES) MORE OR LESS

0.050

0.123

A) PLAN 0913248

ROAD

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 4740AK

BLOCK 64

EXCEPTING THEREOUT:

A) THE ROAD WIDENING ON PLAN 5408JK

HECTARES (ACRES) MORE OR LESS

0.07

B) PLAN 1911436

ROAD

0.029

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

AND THE RIGHT TO WORK THE SAME

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 1 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 2 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 3 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 4 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 5 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 6 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 7 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 8 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 9 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681
BLOCK 66
LOT 10
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1910681 BLOCK 66 LOT 11 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1911457
BLOCK 53
STRATA LOT 4
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1911457 BLOCK 53 STRATA LOT 5 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS -and-

PLAN 1911457
BLOCK 53
STRATA LOT 6
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

-and-

PLAN 1911457 BLOCK 53 STRATA LOT 7 EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS